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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your directors are pleased to present the 8™ Annual Report on the business and operations of
National E-Repository Limited (‘the Company’/’NeRL’/ ‘the Repository’) together with the
audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

Financial Results/Performance of the Company

The financial highlights of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 along with
previous year figures are summarised as under:

For the year For the year
ended March ended March

PARTICULARS

31, 2025 31, 2024

(% In lakhs) (% In lakhs)
Total Income 1200.56 1090.06
Total Expenditure 1732.55 1763.05
Profit / (loss) before Taxation and exceptional item (531.99) (672.99)
Exceptional Item NIL NIL
Profit / (loss) after Exceptional Items and before tax (531.99) (672.99)
Profit / (Loss) after tax (A) (398.21) (501.37)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes (B) | (16.38) (9.47)
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (414.59) (510.84)
Add: Surplus brought forward from previous year NIL NIL
Balance carried forward (414.59) (510.84)

Overview and State of Company’s Affairs
Background

NERL started its operations on September 26, 2017, and is regulated by the Warehousing
Development and Regulatory Authority (WDRA) as a Repository for creation and management
of Electronic Negotiable Warehouse Receipts (eNWRs).

Apart from National Commodity & Derivatives Exchange Limited (NCDEX), holding company of
NERL, NERL has a distinguished shareholding pattern comprising of esteemed institutions such
as National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD), the largest re-finance
institution for agriculture and allied sectors, State Bank of India, the largest public sector Bank
in India, and ICICI Bank, one of the largest private sector Banks in India. Such unique parentage
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makes it a unique proposition for NeRL to provide repository services to the Indian Agricultural
Market and Warehouse Receipt Financing through eNWR ecosystem.

The main business of NERL is to offer a digital platform for the creation and management of
eNWRs, issued by the warehouses registered with the WDRA.

The year 2024-2025 was a remarkable year of many milestones. During the year, banks crossed
Rs.11,000 crore of loans against e-NWRs since inception and also crossed more than Rs.3,300
crore of loans against e-NWRs during the year.

Emerging business remained the focus area in the background of derivative contracts having
been suspended by SEBI for several banned for few major agricultural commodities, higher
inflation, and interventions by the Government under the Essential Commodities Act. The
agriculture business environment remained volatile, ambiguous, and uncertain. In spite of
many challenges, our market share remained at approximately 87% in e-NWR finance for the
year.

During the year under report, NeRL reached 11,32,895 MT in deposits, a significant
development for the Emerging Business, with a growth of about 27% higher than previous
year 2023-24.

The business under exchange volumes continued being impacted for the third consecutive year
due to the continued suspension of 3 major commodities i.e., Chana, Mustard, & Soybean
complex, for trading on NCDEX platform. Before the suspension, these commodities provided
substantial business to NeRL.

These milestones were bolstered with successful national level events organized with more
than 2800 awareness programs.

Exchange and Emerging Business:

FY 2024-25 was the 7™ full year of operations for NeRL after receiving the Certificate of
Registration from WDRA. NERL also completed five years of operations in Emerging Business
(non-exchange business). NeRL closed the year with more than 11,821 active customers
(~3,000 customers added in FY 2024-25), 84 pledgee Banks/ NBFCs, 3 CM Pledgees, 1,344
unigque Warehouses issuing eNWR/eNNWR, and 101 Repository Participants (‘RPs’) across 17
States and 1 UT in India. NeRL has issued more than 6 lakh eNWRs (Exchange + Emerging
Business*) for commodities over 73.5 Lakh MT (Exchange + Emerging Business) deposited in
WDRA registered warehouses since inception.

Clients, banks and warehouses kept showing interest in the eNWR ecosystem, thus helping in

achieving a 9% growth in Pledge finance as compared to FY 2023-24. NERL saw upwards of
23,200 Crores worth of pledge finance against eNWR on its platform in FY 2024-25. The
Emerging Business saw a growth of 27% in deposits (deposits in eNWR & eNNWR) in FY 2024-
25 as compared to FY 2023-24.
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Performance under some key parameters during 2024-25 remained as below:

Quantity of eNWR (MT) Value (% in Crores)

FY2024-25 FY2023-24 | Growth%  FY2024-25 FY2023-24  Growth %

Exchange

. -10.33%
Business

-17.03%

1597.131 1924.91

2,51,475

2,80,456

*Emerging

. 11,32,895 7,08,148 59.98% 5069.17 3786.43 33.88%
Business

Total

13,84,370 9,88,604 40.03% 6666.301 5711.34 16.72%

Quantity of eNNWR (MT)

Emerging
Business

1,82,692 1,84,787

*Note: All businesses other than Exchange are termed as “Emerging Business”

Loans against eNWRs issued by NERL during 2024-25. (in Crores)

FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 Growth %

Exchange Business 541.02 439.49

Emerging Business 2,472.16 2,853.83 15.44

Total 3,013.18 3,293.32 9.30

Since inception (As on March 31, 2025)

FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25

RPs (account maintenance)

RPs (pledgee)

CM Pledgee

Number of active depositors/client accounts
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Technology Adoption and Advancement:

We are pleased to report on the significant strides we have made in modernizing and securing
our technology infrastructure to better serve our stakeholders and building a robust
ecosystem.

In FY 25, our team has successfully integrated the NeRL system with the government's
JanSamarth platform, specifically for the eKUN scheme. This pivotal step provides farmers with
a seamless and secure digital experience for availing pledge finance against their eNWRs. These
innovations in digitalization and automation are foundational to our commitment to creating
an efficient and accessible financial ecosystem for the agricultural sector.

In a key development for our financial partners, we've developed DeepVision, a new beta data
visualization tool. This powerful analytics platform is designed to provide banks and financial
institutions with actionable, data-driven insights. DeepVision empowers them to better
understand business performance, manage risk, evaluate customers, and identify new
business opportunities, fostering a more intelligent and data-centric approach to finance. This
tool represents a significant step in our strategy to provide value beyond our core services and
marks a new frontier in data monetization.

Our focus on innovation is matched by our unwavering commitment to system security. We
have taken proactive measures to protect the NeRL environment, implementing a robust,
multi-layered security framework. The adoption of Guard Duty and AWS Security Hub provides
intelligent security management, enabling automated threat detection and compliance checks.
Furthermore, we have invested in advanced security assessments, including Red Team
Assessments, which have confirmed the resilience of our systems against external threats.
Coupled with regular organizational security awareness programs, such as phishing drills and
campaigns, we are fostering a security-conscious culture that is vital to protecting our data and
maintaining stakeholder trust.

This dedication to advanced technology and security has not gone unnoticed, culminating in
the prestigious CIO 100 award for our data analytics initiatives, a testament to the hard work
and foresight of our entire team.

Dividend and Appropriation

The Company has been incurring losses since its incorporation due to which, there are no
reserves available with the Company. Hence, no dividend is recommended for the year under
report.

Public Deposits

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted and/or renewed any public
deposits in terms of the provisions of sections 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, and as such, no amount towards
repayment of principal or payment of interest was outstanding as of March 31, 2025.
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Changes in Share Capital

As of March 31%t, 2025, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company remained at
Rs.1,000,000,000 divided into 100,000,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

As of March 31, 2025, the issued, subscribed, and paid up equity share capital of the Company
remained at Rs. 810,000,000 (Rs. 8.1 crore) divided into 81,000,000 equity shares (8.1 lakh
shares) of Rs. 10/- each.

The Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights, employee stock options and
sweat equity shares.

Your Company is a subsidiary of NCDEX. During the year, NCDEX brought down its stake from
67% to 51% as per regulatory requirement of WDRA. As of March 31%t, 2025, NCDEX was holding
4,13,10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, i.e., 51 % of the Paid —up equity share capital of your
Company which includes 2 individuals holding 1 equity share each and 2 individuals holding 1
equity share each (jointly with NCDEX, NCDEX being the first holder) of Rs. 10 each.

Amendment to Memorandum and Articles of Association

There was no amendment to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
during the year.

Change in the Nature of Business

The Company is in the business of offering a digital platform for the creation and management
of eNWRs issued by the warehouses registered with the WDRA. There was no change in the
nature of the business of the Company during the year under report.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013

During the year under review, the Company has not given any loan, guarantee, or made any
investment that attract the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties under Section 188 (1) of
Companies Act, 2013

All the transactions entered with related parties during the year were in the ordinary course
of business and at an arm’s length basis. The Company has not entered into any material
related party transactions. The details of the related party transactions as required under the
IND AS-24 are set out in Note No. 26 to the Financial Statements. Hence, Form No. AOC-2 is
not applicable to the Company for FY 2024-25.

Directors

As of March 31, 2025, the Company’s Board comprised of 8 (eight) Directors, including 3
(three) Non-Executive Independent Directors, 4 (four) Non-Executive Non-Independent
Directors and 1 (one) Managing Director & CEQ, the details of which are given in the below
table:

8
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Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation
o ) Independent Director and Non - Executive
1 Mr. Siraj Hussain )
Chairman
2 Dr. Bibhuti Bhusan Pattanaik | Independent Director
3 Mr. Pramod Kumar Bindlish | Independent Director
Non-Independent Shareholder Director,
4 Mr. Arun Raste ]
representing NCDEX
, Non-Independent Shareholder Director,
5 Mr. Samir Sawhney ,
representing SBI
Non-Independent Shareholder Director,
6 Mr. Ankur Parwal ]
representing ICICI Bank
. Non-Independent  Shareholder Director,
7 Mr. Bhupesh Kumar Singhal ,
representing NABARD
8 Mr. Saurabh Khanna Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Details of appointment of the Directors during the year are as under:

Date of
. . . Date of _ .
Name of the Director Designation . Resignation/
Appointment .
Cessation
L Shareholder  Director, | August 09, ]
Mr. Ankur Parwal , Not Applicable
representing ICICI Bank | 2024
2. Mr. Bhupesh Kumar | Shareholder Director, | August 09, ]
, , Not Applicable
Singhal representing NABARD 2024

Directors Retiring by Rotation (Being Directors Other than Independent Director)

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Samir Sawhney, being a
Non-Independent Director, representing State Bank of India ("SBI”) being the longest on the
Board, pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, is liable to retire
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and is eligible for reappointment.

The Board has recommended the name of Mr. Samir Sawhney for re-appointment as Director
of the Company representing State Bank of India in the “Shareholder Director” category. His
re-appointment is subject to approval of WDRA and the shareholders.

9
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Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”)

The following officials of the Company have been identified as Key Managerial Personnel during
the year pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013. During the year
under review, Ms. Shivani Singh Yadav, Compliance Officer, resigned w.e.f. end of business
hours March 13, 2025, and Mr. Ankit Shah, Company Secretary, resigned w.e.f. end of business
hours March 24, 2025.

Date
Sr. . ) . Date of , .
Name of the Director Designation Resignation/

\[o} Appointment

Cessation

Managing Director &
. ) ! November
1.| Mr. Saurabh Khanna Chief Executive officer -
01, 2023
(MD & CEQ)
) Chief Financial Officer
2.| Ms. Kalyani Mundada May 15, 2023 | -
(CFO)
, February 03,
3.| Mr. Ankit Shah Company Secretary (CS) 2023 March 24,2024
Ms.  Shivani  Singh ] , March 27,
4. Compliance Officer March 13, 2025
Yadav 2023
) . Company Secretary
5.| Ms. Vrushali Darji ) ] May 15, 2025 | -
(CS)/Compliance Officer

Directors Declaration Pursuant to the Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by WDRA and
the Companies Act, 2013

The company has received necessary declarations from all Directors of the Company in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for the
Repositories issued by WDRA.

In accordance with the provisions of the WDRA Guidelines on Corporate Governance,
Directors of Repositories are required to meet the criteria of “Fit & Proper Person”.
Accordingly, all Directors of the Repository have provided the declarations that they meet the
criteria of “Fit & Proper Person” as laid down in the Guidelines.

Additionally, the Directors have confirmed that they are not associated with any repository
participant, trading member, or clearing member or repository member of any recognized
stock exchange or clearing corporation or repository, nor with any associates or agents of
such members.

10
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The Company has also received declarations from all its Directors in accordance with Section
164 of the Companies Act, 2013, confirming that they are not disqualified from being
appointed as directors of the Company.

The said declarations were noted by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 15,
2025.

Declaration by Independent Directors

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence
as laid down under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Guidelines on Corporate
Governance issued by the WDRA. The said declarations were also noted by the Board of
Directors at its meeting held on May 15, 2025.

Annual Evaluation by the Board of Its own performance and that of its committees and individual
Directors

As required under section 178(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, and under Schedule IV to the
Companies Act, 2013, on the Code of conduct for individual Directors, a comprehensive
exercise for evaluation of the performances of every individual director, of the Board as a
whole and its Committees, and of the Chairperson of the Company has been carried out by
your Company during the year under review.

The Board has devised a policy pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, for performance evaluation of the Board and individual Directors (including Independent
Directors) and Committees, which includes criteria for performance evaluation of non-
executive directors and executive directors.

In line with the Companies Act, 2013, company carried out ‘Performance
evaluation/assessment of the Directors for the FY 2024-25. Further, Independent Directors
met separately, without the presence of Executive and Non-Executive Independent Directors
and members of the Management, and inter alia reviewed the performance of Non-
Independent Executive & Non- Executive Directors, the Board as a whole, the performance of
the Chairman and further assessed the quality, quantity and timelines of flow of information
between the Company Management and the Board for FY 2024-25.

Overall, Independent Directors expressed their satisfaction on the performance and
effectiveness of the Board, Individual Non-Independent Board Members, and the Chairman,
and on the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company
Management and the Board.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board also undertook an evaluation of
the Board’s performance, and that of its Committees and Individual Directors for FY 2024-25
and expressed its overall satisfaction on the performance and effectiveness of the Board, the
committees and individual Board Members.

11
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Statement Regarding Opinion of the Board with Regard to Integrity, Expertise and Experience
(Including the Proficiency) of the Independent Directors

There are total three Non- Executive Independent Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Siraj
Hussain, Dr. Bibhuti Bhusan Pattanaik and Mr. Parmod Kumar Bindlish.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company
possess requisite qualifications, experience and expertise in the fields of Banking, Agriculture,
Warehousing, Logistics; and they hold highest standards of integrity. Regarding proficiency,
the Company has adopted requisite steps towards the inclusion of the names of all
Independent Directors in the data bank maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs (‘lICA’). Accordingly, the Independent Directors of the Company have registered
themselves with the I[ICA for the said purpose. In terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule
6(4) of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the
Independent Directors are required to undertake online proficiency self-assessment test
conducted by the IICA within a period of two years from the date of inclusion of their names
in the data bank or they have been exempted from the test. All the three Independent
Directors of the Company are exempted from undertaking the proficiency test.

Details of Meetings of Shareholders

The Seventh (7™) Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on September 19, 2024 in
Mumbai. The Eleventh (11™) Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company was held on April
02, 2024 in Mumbai.

Number of Meetings of the Board and Committees

The Board of your Company meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company's
business policies and strategies apart from other business of the Board. The notice of Board
meetings is given well in advance to all the directors of the Company. The agenda of the Board
/ Committee meetings are circulated at least seven (7) days before the date of the meetings. In
case of any business exigencies, meetings are called and convened at shorter notice, or the
resolutions are passed through circulation and later placed in the next Board / Committee
meetings. The agenda for the Board / Committee meetings includes detailed notes on the items
to be discussed at the meetings to enable the directors / members to take informed decision.

During the financial year 2024-25, four (4) meetings of the Board were held on May 17, 2024,
August 5, 2024, October 28, 2024 and February 7, 2025.

12
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The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors in these meetings are given:

i Number of meetings Number of meetings
Name of the Director )
held duringtheyear @  attended

1. Mr. Siraj Hussain 4 4

Dr. Bibhuti Bhusan Pattanaik
2 4 4
3. Mr. Parmod Kumar Bindlish 4 4
4, Mr. Arun Raste 4 4
5. Mr. Samir Sawhney 4 3
6. Mr. Saurabh Khanna 4 4
7. Mr. Ankur Parwal* 2 2
8. Mr. Bhupesh Kumar Singhal* | 2 2

@ Indicates the number of meetings held during the year after date of appointment of director.

* Mr. Ankur Parwal and Mr B. K. Singhal appointed as a director w.e.f. August 9, 2024.

Audit Committee

As of March 31, 2025, the Audit Committee consisted of three Directors, all the three being
Independent Directors. The terms of reference of the Committee included appointment and/or

replacement of auditors, approval of changes to accounting policies, approval or any

subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties and other

matters which are prescribed under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the financial year 2024-25, four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held on May

17,2024, August 5, 2024, October 28, 2024 and February 3, 2025.

13
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The composition and attendance of the members are given below:

r. Name of the Committee Number of meetings Number of meetings
o. Member held duringtheyear @  attended
1. Mr. Siraj Hussain 4 4
2. Dr. Bibhuti B husanPattanaik 4 4
Mr. Parmod Kumar Bindlish”*
3 2 2
4, Mr. Arun Raste* 2 2

@Indicates the number of meetings held during the year after date of appointment of director
till the resignation/ cessation of the director.

*Mr. Arun Raste ceased to be a member of the Committee w.e.f. August 5, 2024

AMr. Parmod Kumar Bindlish appointed as the Chairman of the Committee w.e.f. August 5,
2024

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) consists of three Directors which
includes two Independent Directors and one Non- Independent Director. The terms of
reference include identification of the persons who are qualified to become directors and who
may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down,
recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of
every director’s performance, formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy,
relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.
The Company has in place a Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

During the financial year 2024-25, two (2) meetings of the NRC were held on May 17, 2024 and
August 5, 2024.

The composition of the NRC and attendance of the members in the meetings of NRC are given
below:

Name of the Committee | Number of meetings Number of meetings

Member held during the year attended
1. Mr. Siraj Hussain 2 2

Dr. B. B. Pattanaik
2 2 2
3 Mr. Arun Raste 2 2

14
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Statutory Auditors

In the Sixth Annual General Meeting held on September 8, 2023, M/s. Khandelwal Jain & Co.,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 105049W) were re-appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a period of five years from the conclusion of the sixth Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of eleventh Annual General Meeting under Section 139 (1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made thereunder.

There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in the report given by
M/s. Khandelwal Jain & Co., Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2025.

The Auditors have, however, drawn attention to the following matters of emphasis in their
report, without qualifying their opinion:
1. Accounting Treatment of Goodwill:
The treatment of goodwill in the books of account, particularly regarding the
consideration of amortization versus its continued retention, has been emphasized.
2. Deferred Tax Asset:
The recognition of Deferred Tax Asset, which is eligible to be carried forward for a
period of eight years up to the financial year 2027-28, is contingent upon the Company
generating sufficient future taxable profits to enable its realisation within the specified
period.

These matters have been appropriately disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements, and
the Auditor’s Report should be read in conjunction with the same.

The Statutory Auditor’s Report, when read together with the relevant notes to the accounts
and accounting policies, is self-explanatory and does not call for any further comment.

As per the second and third proviso of Section 139 (1) of Companies Act, 2013, M/s.
Khandelwal Jain & Co. Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 105049W) have
furnished a certificate to the Company that they are eligible to act as Statutory Auditors of the
Company and satisfy the criteria provided in Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013.The
Statutory Auditors have not observed any frauds in the course of the performance of their
duties as auditor. This is reported in compliance with the provisions under sub-section (12)
of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Internal Audit

In terms of Section 138 of Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to Rule 13(1)(b) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed M/s KPMG Assurance and Consulting
Services LLP as Internal Auditors of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2025. The
scope of the Internal Audit is defined and approved by the Audit Committee. The audit process
also factors in verifying compliance with process, systems, regulatory guidelines, and controls.

15
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Secretarial Audit

In terms of Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company
appointed M/s. Shweta Gokarn & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditor
for the financial year 2024-25. The Secretarial Auditor has not made any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in their report for the financial year ended March
31, 2025. In terms of sub-section (3) of Section 134, the Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3
is attached as an Annexure 1.

Risk Management

The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk,
market risk and credit risk. The Company’s senior management has the overall responsibility
for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.

The Company has developed a Risk Management Policy in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013. It establishes various levels of accountability and overview within
the Company, while vesting identified managers with responsibility for each significant risk.
Risk Management policy has been formulated with an aim to (a) Overseeing the Company's
risk management process and controls, risk tolerance (b) Setting strategic plans and objectives
for risk management and review of risk assessment of the Company (c) Review the Company's
risk appetite and strategy relating to key risks, including credit risk, liquidity and funding risk,
market risk, product risk and reputational risk as well as the guidelines, policies and processes
for monitoring and mitigating such risks.

The Finance department activities are designed to:

» Protect the Company’s financial results and position from financial risks
» Maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns; and
» Protect the Company’s financial investments, while maximising returns

The Finance department is responsible for maximising the return on company’s internally
generated funds.
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A. Management of Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may face in meeting its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it should
have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In
doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions which may have an
impact of company’s functioning.

Company’s finance department regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has
sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs. Any short-term surplus cash
generated by the operating entities, over and above the amount required for working capital
management and other operational requirements, is retained as cash and cash equivalents (to
the extent required) and any excess is invested in fixed deposits to optimise the cash returns
on investments while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities.

B. Management of Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to
meet its contractual obligations.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the Company’s
customer base being large and diverse.

e Trade Receivables

All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on a periodic basis. Based on
historical experience of collecting receivables, supported by the level of default, our
assessment of credit risk is low. Accordingly, our provision for expected credit loss on trade
receivable is not material.

e Other Financial Assets
The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks and
mutual fund companies as per the board approved investment guidelines.

C. Capital Management
The Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital:
Total equity (as shown in the balance sheet) - retained profit, share capital.

The Company manages its capital to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
optimize returns to our shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on
management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements to meet its strategic and
day-to-day needs. The Company considers the amount of capital in proportion to risk and
manages the capital structure considering changes in economic conditions and risk
characteristics of the underlying assets.
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In terms of clause 12 (1) of the Guidelines on Repositories and Creation and Management of
Electronic Negotiable Warehouse Receipts dated October 20, 2016, issued by the Warehousing
Development and Regulatory Authority, the Company is required to maintain a net worth of
not less than Rupees twenty-five crore, at all times. At present, the Company complies with
these guidelines.

Annual Return under Companies Act

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, has been hosted on the company's website at the
following link: https://www.nerlindia.com/about-us/announcements.

Particulars of Employees Required Under the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014

Except for Mr. Saurabh Khanna, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
no employee of the Company received remuneration exceeding Rupees Eight Lakh Fifty
Thousand per month or Rupees One Crore Two Lakh per annum, or in proportion thereto,
during the financial year 2024-25, as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The requisite
details are annexed hereto as Annexure—2.

Disclosure pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014, any
Member who is interested in obtaining a copy of the information on the particulars of top ten
employees in terms of remuneration will be provided upon request may write to the Company
in this regard.

Resources Committed Towards Strengthening Regulatory Functions and towards Ensuring
Compliance with Regulatory Requirements

The Company being a recognized Repository platform, is governed by WDRA. WDRA has issued
various guidelines applicable to the Repository from time to time. The Compliance Department
of the Company, comprising two employees, takes care of various critical aspects of regulatory
compliance. Ms. Vrushali Darji is a Compliance Officer who reports to MD & CEO who further
reports to the Board of Directors of the Company. The total apportioned salary cost paid to the
Compliance department during the financial year 2024-25 was % 10, 07,612/-.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Company has Complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards (as amended from time
to time) on meetings of the Board of Directors issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries
of India and approved by Central Government under section 118(10) of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to board and general meetings.

18



https://www.nerlindia.com/about-us/announcements

NeRL Annual Report FY2024-25 9= ’
<* NeRL

REPOSITORY
COPOSSIBILITIES

Internal Financial Controls

The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are considered to be
adequate.

The Company has maintained adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting.
These controls include i) recording of transactions in a manner that facilitates preparation of
financial statements as per the Generally Accepted Accounting Practices, ii) maintaining
records that in reasonable detail, fairly and accurately reflect the transactions of the repository,
iii) ensuring that all expenditure and income are as per approval of the management, iv)
providing reasonable assurance regarding prevention and timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of company’s assets that can have material impact on the
financials statement of the Company. These financial controls were operating effectively as of
March 31, 2025.

Details of Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associates

As of March 31, 2025, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate
companies. During FY 2024-25, no company has become or ceased to be a subsidiary, joint
venture, or associate company of the Company.

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals Impacting the
Going Concern Status and Company’s Operations in Future

During the year under review, there have been no significant and material orders passed by
the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and which can
potentially impact the Company’s future operations.

Material Changes and Commitments Affecting Financial Position of the Company

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the year to which the financial statements
relate and the date of this report, affecting the financial position of the Company, which are
not already accounted for.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has framed Nomination and Remuneration Policy (the Policy). The Policy applies to
the Board of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel. The
Policy lays down criteria for selection and appointment of Board Members, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management Personnel and also lays down a framework in relation to
remuneration of the aforesaid persons. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy has been
posted on the website of the Company viz. https://www.nerlindia.com.
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Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women in
accordance with provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company is committed to providing a work
environment that ensures that every employee is treated with dignity and respect.

Further, the Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. An ‘Internal Committee’ has been set up to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment.

The disclosures required to be given under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 are given in the following table:

1 Number of Complaints of Sexual Harassment il
i
received during the year

Number of Complaints disposed of during the

2 Not applicable
year
Number of complaints pending for more than 90 ,
3 Not applicable
days
4 Whether workshops or awareness programs Yes, Awareness program was
against sexual harassment were carried out conducted for all employees
5 | Nature of action taken by employer Not applicable

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The Company undertakes suitable measures for the conservation and optimum utilization of
energy.

The Company makes extensive use of technology in its core business operations and also
extending or encourages the same with other companies/stakeholders for the business
integration.

During the year under review, the foreign exchange earnings and outgo were nil.

20




NeRL Annual Report FY2024-25 9= ’
<* NeRL

REPOSITORY
COPOSSIBILITIES

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 of the Act with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that

(a). In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b). The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the year under review and of
the loss of the company for that year;

(c). The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d). The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e). The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

During the financial year under review, the provisions of Section 135 of the Act regarding
Corporate Social Responsibility were not applicable to the Company.

Details of Proceedings under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

During the financial year under review, no application was made or proceeding initiated against
the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, nor was any such proceeding
pending at the end of the financial year under review.

Valuation of Assets

During the financial year under review, there was no instance of one-time settlement of loans
/ financial assistance taken from Banks or Financial Institutions, hence the Company was not
required to carry out valuation of its assets for the said purpose.

Details in Respect of Frauds Reported by Auditors, Other Than Those Reportable to Central
Government

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any frauds to the Audit Committee
or to the Board of Directors under Section 143(12) of the Act, read with rules made thereunder.
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Maintenance of Cost Records

The provisions of Rule 8(5)(ix) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 read with Section 134(3)
of the Act, did not apply to the Company during the financial year under review.

Acknowledgements

Your Directors express their sincere thanks to NCDEX, the holding company for its invaluable
and continued support and guidance. The Directors also take this opportunity to express deep
gratitude for the continuous support received from other Shareholders such as NABARD, SBI
and ICICI Bank for their wholehearted support and cooperation. Your directors would also like
to place on record their deep appreciation of the contribution made by the employees at all
levels for the continued growth of the Company.

The Directors acknowledge the support extended by the bankers to the Company, Auditors,
assaying agencies, the media, both print and visual, and all other service providers/
Stakeholders that the Company has been working with.

The Directors also thank the Warehousing Development Regulatory Authority, the Department
of Food and Public Distribution, Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs and other governmental and other bodies and authorities for their support,
co-operation, advice and direction provided from time to time.

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Saurabh Khanna Siraj Hussain
MD & CEO Chairman
DIN: 10227329 DIN: 05346215

Date: August 01, 2025

Place: Mumbai

22




NeRL Annual Report FY2024-25 9= ’
<* NeRL

REPOSITORY
COPOSSIBILITIES

ANNEXURE-1

SHWETA GOKARN & CO.
COMPANY SECRETARIES

1405, 14th Floor, Haware Infotech Park, Opp. Inorbit Mall, Sector 30A, Vashi, Navi Mumbai
400 705- shweta@shwetagokarn.com|Tel:- +9122 4964 2406 |
www.shwetagokarn.com|Peer Review Reg. 1693/2022

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

[Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Board of Directors,

National e-Repository Limited,

Ackruti Corporate Park, 1st Floor, Near G.E Garden,
Mumbai City, Kanjurmarg (W), Mumbai — 400 078.

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by National e-Repository
Limited (hereinafter called the ‘Company’). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts /
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the
Secretarial Audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 (‘Audit Period’), complied with
the Statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
Processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, Minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records
maintained by the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2025, according to the provisions
of:

a) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

b) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder
— Not applicable to the Company
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c) The Depositories Act, 1996, the regulations and byelaws framed thereunder;

d) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment,
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings - Not applicable to
the Company

e) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

» The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 - Not applicable to the Company;

» The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 - Not applicable to the Company;

» Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable to the Company;

» The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shared Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 - Not applicable to the Company;

» The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 - Not applicable to the Company;

» The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with Client - Not Applicable to the Company;

» The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021 - Not applicable to the Company;

» The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable to the Company.

a) The Laws specifically applicable to the Company, as identified by the management,
being a Repository registered with the Warehousing Development and Regulatory
Authority (“‘WDRA'):-

» Guidelines on Repositories and Creation and Management of Electronic
Negotiable Warehouse Receipts
» Guidelines on Corporate Governance for the Repositories registered for
Creation and Management of Electronic Negotiable Warehouse Receipts
(“‘WDRA Guidelines’)
| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

» Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
» SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 - Not
applicable to the Company.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

SHWETA GOKARN & CO.
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| further report that:

» The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with the proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and the WDRA
Guidelines.

» Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board and Committee Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on the agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the Meeting and for meaningful participation at the Meeting.

» All decisions at the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out
unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or
Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

» Based on the review of Compliance mechanism and representations received from
the Management, | am of the opinion that there are adequate systems and processes in
the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with the applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period, following were the specific events / actions
having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws,
rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.:

» The Members of the Company, at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on April 02,
2024, have appointed Mr. B.K. Singhal, Nominee Director of NABARD and Mr. Ankur
Parwal, Nominee Director of ICICI Bank, as Shareholder Directors of the Company.
The WDRA approval for the said appointments was received on August 09, 2024.
The effective date of the aforementioned appointments is August 09, 2024.

» Alteration in Clause 19 of the Bye-laws of the Company relating to ‘Transmission of
Warehouse Receipt’ by inserting ‘Clause 19A. 1’. (The Company made an application dated
June 19, 2024, bearing reference number NERL/WDRA/2024-2025/005 to the WDRA for
approval of amendment in Clause 19 of the Bye-Laws. The said application is yet to be
approved by the WDRA as on date of this Report).

» Mr. Arun Raste, Shareholder Director (DIN: 08561128), representing National
Commodity & Derivatives Exchange Limited (NCDEX), retired by rotation and was re-
appointed by the Members of the Company at the 07th Annual General Meeting held on
September 19, 2024. The Company has received the WDRA approval for the said re-
appointment on January 29, 2025.

SHWETA GOKARN & CO.

25




NeRL Annual Report FY2024-25 9= ’
<* NeRL

REPOSITORY
COPOSSIBILITIES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

» The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on February 07, 2025,
subject to approval of WDRA, has amended clauses 6 (w.r.t. Advisory Committee) &
9A (w.r.t. Statutory Committees) of its bye-laws. The Company has made an application
dated March 04, 2025, bearing reference number NERL/WDRA/2024-2025/020 to the
WDRA for approval of the amendment. The said application is yet to be approved by the
WDRA as on date of this Report.

» Pursuant to the extension granted by WDRA exempting NCDEX from restrictions of holding
more than 51% of the paid-up capital of the Company under Clause 4(9) of the WDRA
Guidelines, NCDEX held 67.22% at the start of the FY 2024-25. As of January 24, 2025,
NCDEX has disinvested its holding by 16.22% to bring it down to the extent of 51% of the
Share Capital of the Company.

» Mr. Ankit Shah, Company Secretary, resigned from his post as the Company Secretary
of the Company with effect from March 24, 2025.

Place: Navi Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2025

For Shweta Gokarn & Co.
Company Secretaries
Peer Review Regn. No.: 1693/2022

Sd/-

Ms. Shweta Gokarn

ACS: 30393

CP No.: 11001

UDIN: A030393G000324005

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed herewith and
forms an integral part of this report.
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SHWETA GOKARN & CO.
COMPANY SECRETARIES
1405, 14th Floor, Haware Infotech Park, Opp. Inorbit Mall, Sector 30A, Vashi, Navi Mumbai 400
705, shweta@shwetagokarn.com|Tel:- +9122 4964 2406 | www.shwetagokarn.com|Peer
Review Reg. 1693/2022

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To,

The Board of Directors,

National e-Repository Limited,

Ackruti Corporate Park, 1st Floor, Near G.E Garden,
Mumbai City, Kanjurmarg (W), Mumbai — 400 078.

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. This is to state that:

a) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on my audit.

b) | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. | believe that the processes and practices | followed provided a reasonable
basis for my opinion.

c) |have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

d) The compliance of the provisions of corporate laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

e) Whenever necessary | have obtained and relied on the Management representation
provided by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the
Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the
Company.

f) The Secretarial Audit Report for financial year ended on March 31, 2025 is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Navi Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2025

For Shweta Gokarn & Co.
Company Secretaries
Peer Review Regn. No.: 1693/2022

Sd/-

Ms. Shweta Gokarn

ACS: 30393

CP No.: 11001

UDIN: A030393G000324005

27




NeRL Annual Report FY2024-25 ) .
" 2 NeRL

REPOSITORY
COPOSSIBILITIES

ANNEXURE-2

Information Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 Read With Rule 5 (2) Of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Name Designatio | Remun | Nature | Qualifi | Numb | Total | Date of | Age | Last
and of | n eration | of cation | er of | Experi | comme | (Yrs) | Emplo
the Receive | employ |s of | shares | ence ncemen yment
Employe d in FY | ment the / No. of | t of and
e 24-25 Emplo | Perce | years | employ Desig
(Rs.) yee ntage | as on | ment nation
of March
equity | 31%,
shares | 2025
held
by the
emplo
yee in
the
comp
any
Mr. MD & CEO | 1,07,85, | Full MBA- | - 25 Novem | 49 Busin
Saurabh 151 time DAVV ber 1, ess
Khanna Indore 2023 Head
for
Agricu
lture
&
Allied
busin
ess of
L&T
Finan
ce

»  The above mentioned remuneration is inclusive of Salary as per Provisions contained in
Section 17(1), Employer’s contribution towards Provident Fund, Contribution towards
National Pension Scheme (‘NPS’), Reimbursements paid under Motor Car Expense policy
of the Exchange + Taxable value of Perquisites, as applicable.

»  The above mentioned remuneration is exclusive of any provision made towards Gratuity.

»  Ason March 31, 2025, there were employees 55 on the rolls of the Company
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»  Nature of employment is permanent of the Company on contractual basis governed by the
employment terms & conditions and service rules from time to time.

»  The Company does not have any Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP) Scheme for its
employees.

»  None of the above is a relative of any Director.
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g s e —Y CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
4-B2C, Ml Court, bth Floox, fol. {+91.22) 4311 5000
111, M. Karve Road, Churchgote, E-mod: kjcofdkjco net
Mumbaoi « 400 020 Wabsite: www. kico net

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of National e-Repository Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of National e-Repository Limited
("the Company”™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Loss), the Statement of Changes in Eguity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the
material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“the financial statements”™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act™) in the manner o required and give a true and fair view In conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other
asccounting principles generally accepted In India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, the loss and total comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act {(SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial
statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities In accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

1) We draw attention to the carrying value of goodwill of Rs, 1,187.69 lakhs in the
Standalone Audited Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025. Based on the
management’s assessment supported by [Impairment assessment of Comtrack Business
Undertaking done by an Independent Valuer and the future profit projections, the
Company has concluded that no impalirment of goodwill is required. The assessment
involves significant management judgment with respect to assumptions regarding future
business performance.

= Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

£y Y 3
p

K\I,Lu)”We draw attention to Note 16 of the Standalone Audited Financial Statements regarding
: \ | the Company continues to recognize and carries forward net deferred tax assets of Rs,
' 1,118.43 lakhs as &t March 31, 2025 on account of business losses and unabsorbed
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depreciation on a reasonable certainty based on future taxable profits and the
management expects that business losses and unabsorbed deprecation will be adjusted
against the future taxable profits based on business plan and projections given by the
Company.,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board's Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’'s report,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility i to read the
other information identified above when It becomes available and, in doing S0, consider
whether the other information is materially Inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, If we conclude that
there s a matenal misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to
those charged with governance and describe actions applicable in the applicable laws and
regulations, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financal position, financial performance, total comprehensive koss, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
prinGiples generally accepted In India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
oadequate accounting recerds in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financil statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In prepanng the financial statements, management (s responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
1o going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to hiquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
' :'Oﬂt objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as

‘7 \ .ﬁsolu are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and Lo issue an
4 " "aug!_uor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance,
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but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or erfor and are
considered material if, Individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financlal statoments.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintaln
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinen, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the sudit in order to
design audit procedures that sre appropriate In the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate Intemnal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, '

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our suditor's
report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company Lo cease to
continue as a going concern,

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
inchading the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and In evaluating the results of
our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the finoncial
statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also pravide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

i
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure ‘A’, a statement on the matters
specified in paragrophs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

&) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b) 1In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books,

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and loss including Other
Comprehensive Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appeinted as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in Annexure *B'. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's Internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included In the Auditor's Report in
sccordance with the requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company 1o its directors during the year
is In accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

. The Company hes disclosed the impact of pending ltigations as at March 31,
2025 on its financial position in Its financial statements - Refer Note 36 to the
financial statements.

#. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable osses - Refer Note 29
to the financial statements,

Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March

f /_ . There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the [nvestor
31, 2025 - Refer Note 40 to  the financial statements,
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iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no lunds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds ar
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
In any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiares™) or provide any guarantee, security
or the ke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficaries; - Refer Note 43(vi) to the
financial statements.,

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregote)
have been received by the Company from any person of entity, including
foreign entity ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or othorwise, that the Compony shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any
manner whatsocever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {"URimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; - Refer Note 42(vi) to the financial statements.

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate i the circumstances, nothing has comea 10 our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (1) and (i) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor pald any dividend during the year,

vi. Based on our expmination which included test checks, the Company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit tradl (edit jog) facilty and the same has operated
throughout the year for 3l relevant transactions recorded in the software,
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with,

For KHANDELWAL JAIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm chastrauin Number: 105049W

= / \,l_}f",q.‘ b

(Bhupendra Karkhanis)
PARTNER
Membership Number: 108336

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 18, 2025
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to In paragraph 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of National e-Repository Limited of even date)

To the best of our Information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we state that:

| In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company Is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative detalis and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

(B)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
assets,

(b) The Company has physically verified the Property, Plant and Equipment in
accordance with a program of verification which in our opinion provides for physical
verification of all Property, Plant and Equipment at reasonable Intervals, We have
been informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any
immovable property and accordingly the provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of the said
Order are not applicable to the Company.

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the
year.,

(e) According to the mformation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated
during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for
holding any benami property under the Benaml Transactions {(Prohibition) Act, 1984
(as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

i. {(a) The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not
hold any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3{ii) of Companies {Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 2 5 crore, in aggregate, at any
points of time during the year, from banks or financial Institutions on the basis of
secunty of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is

Ya anot applicable.

¢

(-

-{,-,'/ Page 6 of 11

36




NeRL Annual Report FY2024-25 9=, )
° <2 NeRL
REPOSITORY
CO POSSIBILITIES
KHANDELWAL JAIN & CO. CONTINUATION SHEET
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

i, According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year, the company has not made
investments in, provided any guarantee or secunty or granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(lli)(a) to (f) of
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not made Investments and not granted loans or provides guarantees or
securities to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(iv) of the of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are not
applicable to the Company.

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections
73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent notified,
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. The maimenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out
by the Company. Thus, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the
Company

vii (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinten, the Company is generally regular in
depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income tax, service tax, goods and service tax (GST), duty of Custom, duty
of Excse, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable,
with the appropriate suthorities, According to the records of the Company, there were
no undisputed amounts payable In respect of provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, service-tax, GST, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the Information and explanation given to us, there are no dues in respect
of sales tax, value added tax, income tax, goods and services tax, duty of customs,
wealth tax, duty of excise and service tax Including cess which have notl been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

viit. According to the Information and explanation given to us, there were no transactions
relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
imcome during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961).

ix.{a) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not been
declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or government or any
government authority.,

2hfc) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no

/\gj/ﬁ" outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause
«)  3{ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.
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(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the company.

(¢) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture and
accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order s not applicable to the
Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, assocate or joint venture and
accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

x. (8) The Company has not ratsed any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under ciause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. (8) We hereby confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no fraud by
the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of saction 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management there are no whistle blower complaints
recetved by the Company during the year.

xli. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not appheable to o,
the provisions of Clause 3(xil) of the Order are not applicable to the Company,

xiit, The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financlal statements as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

xiv. (&) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issved 1o the
Company during the year, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

xv. In our opinion during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with him, Accordingly, the provisions
of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

5
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vV

. (3) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of [ndia Act, 1924, Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi)(a),
(b) and (c) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company

(b) As per information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, there is no core
investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3{xvi)(d) of
the Order is not applicable.

xvil. The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 337.34 lakhs during the financial year 2024-
25 covered by our audit and Rs 284,34 Lakhs for the immediately preceding financial year
2023-24,

xviit. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financlal ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial habilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
1o cur attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantée nor any assurance
that all Kabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,

xx. According to the Information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, during the
year, provisions of section 135 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) i not applicable to
the Company, accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx)(e) & 3(xx)}{b) of the Order are not
applicable for the year

For KHANDELWAL JAIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:105049W

\‘}V‘m 2

( hupécndra Karkhanis)
PARTNER
Membership Number: 108336

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 1B, 2025
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

{Referred to In paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of National e-Repository Limited of cven date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of National e-
Repository Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management ks responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia (ICAI). These
responsibiiities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate mternal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frouds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of rellable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility 15 to express an opinion on the Company's Internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note) and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial contrels, both applicable to
an audit of internal financial contrals and both issued by the 1ICAL Those Standards and
the Guidance Note reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the sudit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and f such controls operated effectively in all material
respects,

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of intermal financial controls over financial reporting inchuded
obtaining an understanding of Internal financial controis over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

@‘P We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financsal controls system
Lover financial reporting
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A company’s Internal financial control over financial reporting I1s a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financal statements for external purposes In accordance with generally
accepted accounting peinciples. A company's Internal financial control over flinancial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preéparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principies, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made oaly In accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent kmitations of internal financial controls over linancial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financal coatrol over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or proceduras may deteriorate,

Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the Company has, in all matenal respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such intermal financial controis over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, basad on the intermal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Awdit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
india.

9. Based on our examination which Included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all refevant
transactions recorded in the sofltware, Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, Additionally, the
audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

For KHANDELWAL JAIN & CO,
Chartered Accountants
Firm_Rggastratign Nuchl:X05049w

(b

(Bhupendra Karkhanis)
PARTNER
Membership Number: 108336

Place : Mumbal
Date : May 18, 2025
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July 16, 2025

To,

The Board of Directors
National E-Repository Limited

I 81 Floor, Ackruti Corporate Park,
LLBS Road, Kanjurmarg (\West),
Mumbai - 400 078,

Maharashtra

Re.: UDIN to be disseminated to all the stakcholders / users of the
Independent Auditor's Review Report dated May 18, 2025 on the
financial results for the year ended March 31, 2025,

Dear Sirs,

We refer to our Independent Auditor’s Review Report dated May 18, 2025 on the
financial results of National E-Repository Limited (“the Company™) for the year
ended March 31, 2025. At the time of signing of the Independent Auditors Report,
Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) was required to be generated which
we could not generate on the date of issuing the said Report. The same has been
generated on July 16, 2025, The UDIN is 25108336BMINQCG6092.

We request you to disseminate the said UDIN to all the stakeholders and user of the
said Independent Auditor’s Review Report on the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2025.

Thanking you.
Yours faithfully,
For KHANDELWAL JAIN & CO.

Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registration Q‘u.: 105049W —

1 @VV\,\M\S 0 |

(BHUPENDRA KARKIANIS)
PARTNER
Membership No.: 108336

42




NeRL Annual Report FY2024-25 9= i
i &2 NeRL

National e-Repository Limited
Financial Statements

43




NeRL Annual Report FY2024-25 o= i
< NeRL

REPOSITORY
CO POSSIBILITIES
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(AR amounts In INR lakdes, unless othermise staled)

Balance Shoet a8 ot March 31, 2028

S . Asa [ As ol ]
o | M aernot, 2028 | Warch 31, 2624
Assots
\Noo-cumnt Aspets
| (2) Propesty, #ant and oupeent 2 ns 273
| (=) Intangle assets 3 00,01 21187
() Imangie assads under developrment 4 768 44 00
(@) Goodwil 118750 1.187.60
(@) Financal Assets 7
() Non-curment Bank Balances 1IN0 043200
(W) Others 89.75 5182
) ncome Tax Assets " 570 6237
() Defomed Tax Assots (Net) " 111043 01915
(1) Other noncurrent assets ] 45 442
Total non-casrent assots 375588| 353674
Current Assets
() Fnancial Assets
{0 Trade Recowvables S0 e 18472
{0 Cash and cash oguevakont 50 109 40 188 20
(1) Bank Balarces other Pan Caah and cash equevilont 5b 1,587 .00 293200
(&) Obers b 106,02 urB4a
(0} Other curren! assety ¢ 4003 &0 02
Total current assets | 2,043.25 284286
Total Assets £80383 6,179 60
Equity
{n) Equity Srave capial l 9 10000 8100 0
{b) Other Equty | 10 (34a058)] (3,074.95)
Tota! Equity | : 4610.44 5025.04
!
Liabafities |
Non-current Liabistses
{0} Provisions 14 8571 00 45
Totat mon-curront llabilitios B5.71 6048
Cearrent Liabiitios
() Firancia Liabétes l
{1) Tencke Payables 112
{R) bl outstanding Oues of Mo enterpases and smol 2486 i 2290
enlprpoines
(U] totnl cutsianaing Oues of CredWions other han micro 6295 e
Coderprises and seal enterlprises
{1) Deposit from Reposiory Paticpants 1 415806 800
{» Ohars 11b 3162 asn
(D) Other current habiises 12 nae 20m
{c) Provessons 12 | s2rn 1 12184
Total current Babilties [ S 1,007.58 ; 1,084.11
Total Liabilities i 2 130338 | 11548 |
Totsl equity and tabllities — T sana 8,179.60

Summary of signiicant accouning poiices !
Notos refor 15 abave 1orm an indegral part of Balaece Sheat

Ths is e Balance Sheel roferred 10 in our neport of even dato

For Khandolwal Jakn & Co. For and on bahat of the Boasd of Direciors
Crampned Accountants = National E.Ragono'y Limited
qu W No 105040wW ‘ &

, y, \\""‘ :

| v
ra Karkhanis Saarabh Khaona _Swer MORRIIN
» o MD & CLO Directon
Mombenstep No.: 100330 et GG DIN - 10227320 DIN - 05346215
SQ"’ T =
Pace | Munba v art Mundada
Date - May 18, 2009 AVP Loga, Comgliance & Chiéet Financial Officer

Company Seoretary
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National E-Repository Limited - Financial Statements
(AN amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Statemant of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Note Forthe yearended |  For the year onded
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
INCOME
Révanue from operations 17 o565 42 85819
Other Income 18 23515 23187
] ~ 1,200.56 ) R 1,000.06
EXPENSE
Employee benafits expense 19 954 12 886.92
Technolegy Expenses 20 2721 218 57
Depreciation & Amortization 21 21364 ann
Other Expenses 22 202867 258.35 |
Total Expensos 1,732.55 1.763&6_
Profit [ {loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax (531.99) (672.99)
Less: Excaptional Mem 40 -
Profit [ (loss) after Exceptional Items and before tax (631.99) (672.99)
Income tax expense 16
Current Tax . -
Deforred Tax !  fmamnl (171.62)
Total tax expense (133.77) {171.62)
Profit / (Loss) after tax (A) (398.21) " (501.37)|
Other Comprehensive Income
Hems that will not be reclassified %0 peofit or loss
“Remeasuremoent of dofinod benetit plans (21.89) (12.65)
Ancome tax on above 5.51 318
Other comprehensive income for the yoar (B) (16.38) . (9.47)
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (414.59) __(510.84)
Eamings per equity share ( FV Rs. 10 each) b
Basic (Rs.) (0.48) {0.62)
Diluted (Rs.) (0.48) {0.62)
Summary of signdicant accounting polcios 1

Notes refer to above form an ndegral part of the Statement of Profit & Loss

This 1s the Statement of Prod & Loss rederred 10 in our report of even date

For Khandelwal Jain & Co. For and on behall of the Boasd of Directors
Chartered Accountants /,~.— — National E-Repository Limited
\ Zahs SAY 2 \
?MW" . o o 1”{”” “‘,/.'.‘,\'70 gioog ;‘\»:-.“ - % el
- e |2 1" 7 “.l C— > > k> ( "
is g 4 1% MumMsm H - tJi\"“ S m———
Bhupendra Karkhanis \a' ‘'l #~  Saurabh Khanna Sk T
Pamner W, ey ) MD & CEO Directoe
Membership No.: 106336 Ny et/ DIN - 10227329 OIy.- 05346215 Jo-
- g ’ 0 .
R o
Place Vrushali Darji Kadyani M
Date . May 18, 202% AVP Legal, Complance & Chef Financial Offcer

Company Secretary
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Naotonal E-Repontiory Limsed - Flnancial Statements
(AN arocante v INR (ahhs, wfess ofheravee o)
Statoment of Cash Sow for B year eaded March 31, 2024

l I T for the year ended [ ¥or tho year ended
Parte ulars March 31, 2028 March 39, 2024
- — ..+ S | 04 |
Ennﬂmhmap«wngum.ml&m)um'u 53199 wrim)
Adyostmacts Lo k
Deprecateon & Amenteanca | N384 @12
irdeseat Exgonen (WSAE ) @2.15) 0w |
EX009s prowion ealion back for bad § coctaiul debis | 2.39) .
Prowecn for Docbthst delts . 040
Intrrest Mo (219 082) R2V40)
— SO
Oporming cash fow bof hanges in asscts and Rabideoy {530.08) 149252
hdps for; Mo n workng capitar
Decrease | increane) n Vade secomvabies a2 D718
- Ducrense J (Incraste) in other Soancaal and non Nances assets |em| 12508
Decssase / (WnCroase) n VaO0e Payalio avd Prowvecons o4 0 na
Decrsase / (incraase) n Doposs Som Repostory Pancpans (Net) 144.37) TS
[Coanh genecatod from operations (530 64) {551.9)
ncome tax (Pad) ! Recewed Ny _ ass
|%Net cashi infow from operating activities 516 45725
Cash Hows ko investing activities
Puchase of anglie and mangtie PPE ncudng Cwe s ()
rlangtin atsets cndar dovelopment 30 6% (14.08%)
NIVOSITIEN 0 fed deposds nron 436 14
mered! Income . 1739 237
Net cash Saw feom investing activities T . €30 85
Cash Nows Mom Snanc g activies
hawe of Equity Share Captal in cash
Shate issun ergonses i -
Not canh Sow feam Inancing activitios
Net Increasofdecrosse) in cash and Cash equivaloms ‘ (789 153 61
Cash and cash oguivalints M beginning of the nancial year A _1u_a_q . u'r_&_ﬂ
Canh and cash eguivalants 3 ond of the Snancial year l’ 10040 188.3%
[Reconciliation of cash and cash equivelents as por The cash Now statoment K B
-Caah and conh aquivalarts as per abowe comivise of e loliowny 10642 148
{Caah and Cash equtvalonts 10840 LIS
Wal 5 por statement of cash fows = 10943 186.59 |

Notes :

Y The abowe Cash Flow Statoment has been grapared under ihe “Indeect Method” s sef out in e ind AS-T on Statoment of Caah Fiow s nolled under Companied
(Accounts) ades, 2015 =5 amended

4 Figuees lor Be peevious peav Naree Daen MQUoused, Mearanged Snd recisviled wherower necossary
Thee above stalerrent of canh fows should De 1080 N CONUNCINN wilh e BECOMPEnYINg NStes

Far Khandehwal Jain & Co, — For and on beball of the Doard of Disectors
Charteved Acc AN 52N Nagionyl Etepository Limited

& ja— [f.\j* 2

Sscrabh < Sieaf Hussain
Pamner MD L CEO Dwecior
Membarstep No. 106036 0N - 10327379 + 05344215
S 5 ol
s il /,ﬁ'
Pace  Munia o ol Mundada
Dute  May 18, 2025 AVF Legal. Comphance & Chvef Fnaecial Ofcer

Comparny Secretary
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National E-Repository Limited - Financial Statoments
(AIl amownts in INR lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

Equity Share Capital

Pasticulars

(Rs in Lakhs)

Balance as at Apeil 3, 2023

Changes in oquity share capital during the year

Changes in aquity share capital due to prior period emors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting year

8,100.00

Bakance as at March 31, 2024

8,100.00

Balance as at Apnil 1, 2024

Changes in equiy share capital during the year

Changes in equity share capital due to prior pediod errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting year

8,100.00

Balance as at March 31, 2025

8,100.00

Statement of Changes in Other Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

£ NeRL

REPOSITORY

OO POSSIBILITIES

Roserves and Surplus

Particulars

Capital Resorve :

Retained Earnings

Total

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

(3,074 96)

(3,074 96)

{368.21)

{388.21)

(16 38)

(16.38)

Balance at the end of the reporting period on 31st
March 2026

(3,489.56)

(3,489.56)

Statement of Changes in Other Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars

Capital Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
on April 01, 2023

Retained Eamings

B

(2.564.13)

Total |
(2,564 13)

Loss for the year

(501.37)

{501.37)

Other comprahensive Income / (Loss) for the year

(9.47)

(8.47)

Balance at the end of the reporting period on 315t
March 2024

(3,074.96)

(3,074.96)

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants P
Firm's Registration No. 105048W 1L JAi

Ww«ﬂ [ fer
\ i —_——s ‘

Bhiupendra Karkhanis
Partner
Membership No.. 108338

Place | Mumbai
Date : May 18, 2025

This is the stalement of changes in equity refered to in our report of even date

For and on behaXf of the Board of Directors
National E-Ropository Limited

= _‘b&\w’ 7

~~Saurabh Khanna

MO & CEO
DIN - 10227329

-

Vrushali ji

AVP Legal, Complance &

Company Secretary

Si

et

Mussain

Director
DIN - 05346215

evarded®’

Kalyani Mundada
Chef Financial Officer
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National E-Repository Limited - Financial Statements
1. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

I. Corporate information

National E-Repository Liméted (the Company' or “the Repository” or “NERL") is incorporated %o
provide Repository sendces having received a permanent Certificate of Regestration Warehousing
Development and Regulatory Authority (WDRA). The core functions of a repository as envisaged by
WDRA are to ensure enabling safe and accurate creation, storage, maintenance and cancellation of
electronic Negotiable Warehouse Recepts, enabling the transfer, pledge or removal of the pledge, e-
aucton of electronic Negotiable Warehouse Receipts, enabling electronic holding of warehouse
receipts issued by warehouses 10 faciitate transfer, pledge or removai of the pledge. e-auction of the
receipts. The Company was incorporated on February 10, 2017, under the provisions of the
Companies Act. 2013, NERL is regulated by Warehousing Development and Regulatory Authority.
NERL is subjected to various laws of the land ke the Warehousing (Development and Regulation)
Act, 2007.

The financial statements are approved for Issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 15,
2025

i, Material Accounting Policios

This note provides a kst of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
interim financial statements (“financial statements”). These policies have been consistently appised
to the year / period presented, unless otherwise stated.

1. Basis of preparation and statement of Complance
1.1 The financial staterments as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025 have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (India Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules. 2016. The operations of the Company has been stanted from Seplember 26, 2017 on
receipt of permanent Certificate of Registration from WDRA, These financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with ind AS
1.2 The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
followings:
L. certain financial assets and Kabilities and contingent consideration that is measured at
fair value;
" assets held for sale measured at fair value less cost to sell;
il defined benefit plans plan assets measured ot fair value;

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs and all values are rounded
to the nearest lakhs except where otherwise stated

2. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible Assets,
2.1 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and intangible assets are not deprociated or amontized
once classifiad as hedd for sale

PPE are stated at actual cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Actual cost
I8 inclusive of freight, installation cost, duties, taxes and other incklental expenses for ringing
the asset 1o its working condttions for its intended use (net of CENVAT / GST) and any cost
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directly attributable to bring the asset into the location and condition necessary for # 1o be
capable of operating in the manner intended by the Management. It include professional fees
and borrowing costs for qualifying assets,

Significant Parts of an item of PPE having different useful lives & material value or other factors
are accounted for as separate components. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
recognized in the staterment of profit and loss as incurred

Depreciation of these PPE commences when the assets are ready for thelr intended use
Depreciation on subseguent expenditure on PPE arising on account of capital improvement or
other factors is provided for prospectively over the remaining useful life

Depreciation is provided on straight line method over the useful life of the assets

Fixed assets having an original cost less than or equal to Rs. 5,000 individually are fully
depreciated in the year of purchase or installation.

Leasehold improvement is amortzed over the renewable penod of lease subject to a maximum
of 60 months.

The residual value of all assets is taken to be "NIL".
The useful life of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Asset Class Useful Life
Leasehold Improvements | Over the penod of lease 7
z 15 years for Single shift operated plant

Plant & Machinery rsyyears for Double s":p operateg‘ plant

Fumiture & Fixtures 10 years

Electrical Installations ERRRNN & T SO Hin, |

Computers 3 -6 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Vehicles 8 years

Telecommunication Equipment 6 years |
| Servers and Networks 6 years i

The estimated useful hves and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and
necessary, changes in estimates are accounted for prospactively.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets or over the shorler of the assets useful ife and the lease term if there is
an uncertainly that the company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

An #tem of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economsc benefits are
expected 1o arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss ansing on the disposal
or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized i the Statement of Profit and Loss

PPE acquired as a parl of Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) for transfer of Comirack
Business Undertaking from National Commodity & Derivatives Exchange Limited (NCDEX) to
the Company are stated in the financial statement at the written down value of the assets in the
books of NCOEX and are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the assets,
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2.2 Intangible assots
Recognition of intangible assets

a. Computer software
Purchase of computer software used for the purpose of operations is capitakzed. However,
any expenses on software support, maintenance, upgrade efc. payable pernodically is
charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Costs capitalised are amortized on a straight line basis over a period of 5 years based on
management’s estimate.

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unique software products controlled by the Company are recognized as intangible assets
when the following criteria are met

« itis technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use

« management intends & has ability to complete the software and use or sell it

« software will be able to generate probable future economic benefits

« Software are available, and the expendture attributable to the software during its
development can be rediably measured.

Capitahized development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortized from the
point at which the asset is available for use. Intangible assels are amortized over its
expected useful ife

The carrying value of computer software costs Is reviewed for empairment annually when
the asset is not yel in use, and otherwsse when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Intangible Assets acquired as a part of Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) for transfer of
Comtrack Business Undertaking from National Commodity & Derivatives Exchange Limited
(NCDEX) to the Company are stated in the financial statement at the written down value of the
assets in the books of NCDEX and are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the assets

Intangible Assets | Valuedon the basisof Basis of Amortization
Comtrack Reverse Royalty Approach |
Trademarks | Amortized over a period of seven years |
Commercials Multi-period  Excess  Eamings \
Rights - Comtrack | Approach
Participants | Amortized over a period of seven years
Computer | Replacement Cost Approach o
Software | Amortized over a period of five years
) "]'Kggregated_tﬁe {air values of assets
l acquired reduced the amount of total
' consideration paid for acguisition of

the business by the aggregate fair
value of assets net of fair value of | Tested for impairment on an annual |
liabilties. | bass iy |
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De-recognition of intangible asselts

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses ansing from de-recognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset are recognized in the Statement of ProM and Loss when the asset is
derecognized

2.3 Intangibie assets under development
AR costs incurred in development, are mitially capitalized as Intangible assets under
development - bl the time these are ether transferred 1o Intangible Assets on complelion or
expensed as Software Development cost (Including allocated depreciation) as and when
determined of no further use

3. Impairment of nonfinancial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired, If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amoun. An assetl's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair vakie less costs of
disposal and its value in use

Recoverable amount is determined for an indwidual assel, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely Independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impared and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are {aken ino account If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized n the statement of proft and loss
A previously recognized impairment loss {except for goodwill) is reversed only if there has been
a change i the assumplions used 1o detérmine the asset's recaverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is kmited to the carrying amount of the asset.

4. Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with
s assets camed at amortssed cost and FVOCH debl instruments. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit nisk.
For trade recemvables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permated by Ind AS
109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses 1o be recognised from inital
recognition of the receivables

Goodwill and intangibie assets that have an indefinite useful Iife and ntangibles under
cevelopment are not subject to amontisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently o events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impawed. Other
assets are tested for impasment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the caerying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment foss I8 recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds s recoverable amount. The recaverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes

\\"-{ n
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of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
Groups of assets (cash-generabng units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impalrment are reviewed for possible reversal of the imparment at

the end of each reporting perod

5. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefis will fiow to the
Company and the réevenue can be reliably measured

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligabion is moasured at the amount of
transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The
fransaction price of services rendered is net of vanable consideration on account of various
discounts and schemes offered by the Company as pant of the contract, The Revenue is
recognised net of applicable taxes.

Revenue s recognised in the period when the service is provided as per amangements/
agreements with the customers

Transaction charges
Transaction charges are recognised as income on transaction date basis

Revenue from Operations

Revenue from Operations for NCOEX Markets are recognized when a transaction for Fresh
deposit, Ownership transfer, Client negotiated Trade (Off market transaction), Pledge creation/
cdosure/invocation is entered by chent

Interest Income

Interest income Is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable.

Dividends

Dividend mcome is recognized when the Company's night to receive payment is established by
the reporting date.,

6. Income taxes

The income 1ax expense or cred for the year is the tax payable on the current year's taxable
Income based on the applicable income tax rate adusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilibes atiributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any.

The current income fax charge & calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. i establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected (o be paid to the tax authorties.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and kabikties and their carrying amounts in the financial
statement. Deferred income lax is determined using tax rates (and laws) thal have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
sattled.
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Deferred tax assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if # is probable that fulure taxable amount will be available 1o utilise those temporary
differences and losses. At each reporting date the Company reassesses unrecognized deferred
tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax
assets can be realized

Delerred tax lisbdites are not recognized for temporary differences between the camrying
amount and tax bases of mvestments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and mnterest in
pint arrangements where the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probabile that the dfferences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in subsidiares, associates and interest in joint arrangements
where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
proft will not be avalable against which the temporary difference can be utilised

Deferred tax assets and Eabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right o offset
curront tax assets and liabllites and when the deferred 1ax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assels and tax liabilties are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable nght to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or 10 realise the asset and
settie the liability simultaneously

Current and defesred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
flems recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In thes case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income of directly in equity, respectively.

Minimum aitermnate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as
current tax. The company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only 1o the extent it s
probable that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, |.e , the period
for which MAT credit is allowed to be camed forward. In the year in which the company
recognizes MAT credit as an asset on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum
Alternate Tax under the Income-tax Act. 1951, the said asset is created by way of credit to the
Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitiement”. The Company reviews the
"MAT crede entslement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset 10 the extent
that it is not probable that the company will pay normal tax during the specified period

7. Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Prowisions for legal claims and discountsincentives are recognised when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an cutflow
of resources will be required to settle the obhgation and the amount can be relably estimated,
Provisions are not recognesed for future operating losses

The amount recognized as a prowsion is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertanties surrounding the obligation. If the effect of time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using current pre tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk
specific to the liabdity.

Contingent kabilities are disciosed when there is a possible obigation arising from past events,
the existence of wiuch will be confirmed only by the occurrence o non-occurrence of one or
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more uncenain future events not wholly within the control of the Company of a present
cbligation that anses from past events where it is ether not probable that an outflow of
rasources will be required to settie the obligation or a refiable estimate of the amount cannot be
made

Contingent kabllites are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts,
unless possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

8. Employee Benefits
Short-term obligations

Liabllities for wages and salfanes, mcludng non-monétary benefits that are expected to be
settied wholly within 12 months after the end of the panod in which the employees render the
related service are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabdties are seltled
Short term employee benefits are recognised in Statement of profit and loss in the period in
whach the related service is rendered. The liabdties are presented as current employee benefit
obligations m the statermnent of Assets and Liabilities

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earmed leave are not expected to be settied wholty within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore
measured as the present value of expected fulure payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. The benefits are discounted using the appropriate market ylelds at the end of the
reporting penod that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-
measurements as a result of experience aggustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in profd or loss

The obligations are presented as cusrent labidities in the statement of Assets and Liabilites
since the company dooes not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months after the reporting penod, regardiess of when the actual settlernent is expected 1o ocour

Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
a  defmned beneht plans such as gratuity, and
b. Defined contribution plans such as provident fund
Defined benefit Ptan
« Gratuity obligations

The Company has maintained a Group Gratuity Cum Life Assurance Scheme with the
Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) towards which @ annually contributes a sum
determined by LIC. The hability or assel recognised in the statemen of Assets and
Liabilities »n respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined
benefit cbligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assots
The defined beneft obligation is calculated annually by actuanes using the projected
unit crect method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference o yields on governmem
securties at the end of the reporting penod that have terms approxamating to the terms
of the related oblgation.
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The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net batance of
the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets Thws cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from expenence adusiments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in
other comprehensive mcome. They are included in retained earnings in the statement
of changes in equity and in the statement of Assets and Liabilities.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past
service cost

Defined Contribution Plan

* Provident fund
Retrement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are a defined contribution scheme
and the contnbutions are charged fo the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when
the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no obligations other than
the contribution payable to the provident fund.

Compensated Absences

¢ Short Term compensated absences:- They are provided on estimated basis.

¢ Long Term compensated absences - They are provided on actuanal valuation basis
This actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method

2. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Current and Non-current classification

The Company presents assels and liabiities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-curremt
classification

An asset is treated as current when it is

i. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal cperating cycle
il Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or
. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting perod other than for
(i) above, or
iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a
liability for at least twelve months after the reparting period
v. Current asset also include current portion of non-current financial asset.

All other assets are classified as non-¢urrent
A habidty 1s current when
i It is expected o be sottled in normal operating cycle
I Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
. Mis due to be settied within twelve months after the reponing penod other than for (i)
above, or
.  There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the Rability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current

2. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets & disposal Company's classified as held for sale are measured at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sel
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Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and intangible assels are not depreciated or amortized
once classified as held for sale

3. Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liabdiy in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it 10 another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the crcumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs

The Company categonzes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels
as follows:

« Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted)
This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.
* Level 2

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset oc liability, edher directly or indirectly.

Level 2 inputs include the following:

a) Quoted prices for similar assels or kabilibes in active markets,

b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets or kabilities in markets
that are not active.

c} inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assel or
liabiity.

d) Market — corroborated inputs

« Level3

They are uncbservable inputs for the asset or Rability reflecting signdicant modifications
10 observable related market data or Company's assumptions aboul pncing by market
participants. Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a vak:ation mode!
based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current
market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market
data.

4. Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualfying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognized as an expense in the pernod in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds,
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5. Foreign Currencies
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Financial Information of the Company are measured using the currency
of the pamary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’),
The Financial Information are presented in Indian currency (INR), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency

Transactions and balances

Foresgn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference between the date of transaction and
on settlement or on transiation is recognized in the profit and loss account as income of
expense,

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair vakue in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and habilities carmied at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabities such as equity
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit and loss as part of
the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity
investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income,
Effective Apeil 1, 2018 the company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21- Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration which clarifies the date of transaction for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate to use on Initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The
effect on account of adoption of this amendment was insignificant

6. Use of estimates and judgment
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgment
in applying the accounting policies

7. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument IS any contract that gives rise 1o a financial assel of one ently and a
financial lability or equity instrument of another entity

7.1 Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are altributable to the
acquisition of the financial assel Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delwery of
assets withn a ime frame are recognized on the rade date, 1€, the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following
categories based on business model of the entdy

 Debt instruments at amortized cost

* Debt Instruments al fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

* Debl mstruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

» Equity mstruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A 'debt instrument’ 18 measured al the amortized cost if both the following condit:ons are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely
payments of prancipal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Debt instrument at FVTOC!
A 'debt mstrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following crteria are met

a) The cbjective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured indtially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value, Far value movements are recognzed in the other comprehensive
income (OCIl). However, the Company recognizes Interest income, impakment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss In the PEL. On de-recognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR method

Debt instrument at FVTPL
Any debl instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or
as FVTOC!, is ciasssfied as at FVTPL

In addition, the Company may elect (o designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amonrtized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as st FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only f doing
s0 reduces or eliminatles a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred 1o as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L
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i, 1 tures and jate.

Investment in subskkarias, joint ventures and subsidiaries are carried at cost in the separate
financial statements

Equity investiments

All equity investments are measured at fair value. Equily instruments, the Company may make
an irrevocable election fo present in other comprehensive income subsequen changes in the
fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis The
dlassification is made on intial recognition and is irmevocable

If the Company decides to classity an equdty instrument as at FVTOC!, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dwidends, are recognezed in the OCI. This amount is not
recycled from OCl to P & L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer
the cumudative gain or loss within equity

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L

Trade receivables

Trade Receivables are recognized initially at fair value, plus i the case of trade receivables not
recorded at fair value through proft or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are altributable to
the acquisition of the trade receivables. However, trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

Cash and Cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertibie into
known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having
onginal matunties of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal
and usage.

De-recognition

A financial asset is de-recognized only when
» The Company has transferrad the rights 1o receive cash fiows from the financial asset
or
» Retains the contractual rights 10 receive the cash flows of the financial assel, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaiates whether @ has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the fnancial asset In such cases, the
financial asset s de- recognized

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor refaing substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the
company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the company retains control of
the Enancial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financial asset

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of Impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
nisk exposwe
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I. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e 9.

loans, debt securties, deposits, frade receivables and bank balance

i, Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

. Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

iv. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

v. Loan commitments which are not measwured as at FVTPL

vi. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
» Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables: and
» All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116
ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized
as Income/expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L)

.2 Financial liabilities
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabdties and equity instruments issued by the company are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liabilty and an eguity instrument

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabililes are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial kabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost
uniess at intial recognition, they are classified as fair vaiue through profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial abilibes are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fax vakue through profit or loss are measured at fair
value with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent kabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current
labdties unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognzed initially &t their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method

Loans and borrowings

After Initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liabilties are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable 1o the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently,
the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impaiment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative
amortisation,
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De recognition

A financial tiability is derecogrised when the obligation under the liability s discharged or
cancelled or expres

Leases
As a lessee

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use assel
("ROU") and a corresponding lease kability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases
For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a strasght-line basis over the term of the lease

Certain lease arrangements Includes the oplions 1o extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they wil be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initally recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date
of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and useful ife of the underlying assetl. Right of use assets are
evaluated for recoverabiity whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrymg amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the assel does not generate cash flows thal are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs

The lease kabdity is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implict in the lease or, if
not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates In the country of domicile of
these leases. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related
nght of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension
or a lermination option

Lease liabilty and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash on hand, other short-lerm, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible 1o known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value.

9. Eamings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share is compated by dividing the net profit attributable to eguity
shareholders for the year, by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year
(1) Basic eamings per share
Basic earings per share is calculated by dividing:
* The proft attributable to owners of the company
* By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year

(i) Diluted eamings per share

L JA .

61




= -
NeRL Annual Report FY2024-25 "-'t Ne RL

REPOSITORY
CO POSSIBILITIES

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used i the determination of basic eamings per
share 1o take into account:

* The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

* The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares

10. Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed In the Financial Statements and notes have been rounded off 10 the
nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

11. Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated

12. Reclassification
The previous year's figures have been reclassified to conform to this year's classification

13. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that
involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be
matenally adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning oul to be different than those
originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is
inciuded in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calcufation for each
affected line em in the financial statements

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

Estimation of useful iife of intangible assets Note - 384

Estimation of defined benefit obligation Note - 24

Estimation of Provision for doubtful debts

Estimation of contingent liabiities refer Note — 28

impairment of Assets and Goodwill
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on
the Company and that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances

14. Recent Pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs "MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companides (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance Contracts and
amendments to Ind AS 116 - Leases, relating 1o sale and leaseback transactions. The
Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined
that it does not have any material impact in its financial statements.
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Natlonal E-Repository Limited - Financial Statements
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2 Property, Plant and equipment as at March 31, 2025

—-—
! Costs Computer Servers and | Telecommunication | Furniture and Yot
Hardware Networks Equipments Fixtures
As at April 01, 2024 56.20 491 756 464 77.81
Addsons 16.12 - . - 1612
Drsposals | Adjustments . . -
As at March 31, 2025 7232 491 78| 864 03 42
Accumulated depreciation Computer Servers and | Telecommunication | Furniture and Total
and impairmem Hardware Notworks Equipmants Fixtures
As at April 01, 2024 35.50 4 .89 4.48 171 4758
Depreciation for the year 924 002 094 282 13.02
Disposas | Adustments - - - . -
As at March 31, 2025 45.74 4, 542 453 60.60 |
Computer Servers and | Telecommunication | Furniture and
PetBook Vaine Hardware Networks Equipments Fixtures -
As ot Apnl 01, 2024 19.70 002 308 | Y < 2073
As at March 31, 2025 (Y -, 0.00 214 4N 3283
2 Property, Plant and equipment as at March 31, 2024
Costs Computor Servers and | Telecommunication | Furniture and Total
Hardware Networks Equipments Fixtures
As at April 01, 2023 T 4079 49 758 0.15 5334
Addtions 1547 - - 846 2396
Disposals | Adjustments . . - - .
As at March 31, 2024 5620 a9 7.58 864 77.31 |
Accumulated depreciation Computer Servers and | Telocommunication | Furniture and Total
and impairment Hardware Networks Equipments Fixtures
As at April 01, 2023 2083 | 407 328 0.08 37.36 |
Depreciation for the year 667 082 110 162 1021
Disposals | Adjustments - . - - -
As at March 31, 2024 35 50 489 448 171 4758 |
Boos Computer Servers and | Telecommunication | Furniture and
Mot N Hardware Networks Equipments Fixtures Total
As at Aprd 01, 2023 ' 10.90 084 418 0.06 1568
As at March 31, 2024 19.70 0.02 3.08 693 2973
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AV antiamts @0 INM (ahfin, wevimcs Ofhaneise S1aMe
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[ T AsaiMach 30 856 LT CTUR S S
| Partcutany ho of Sraces Fos o Labins No of Shares s e Lokt
{Dskance 4 the Cogeeng o I (g yeer 01,000,050 [TRT00 B ) X
L IEE00S Gurvn) BN Yot - Y T — - ——
luﬁudnuﬂdumr_ﬁ 81,500 800 (X1 31,000 000 8,100
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The Company has ooly ome cs of oguily shanos having 2 for vk of Tis. 104 pey share Cach hokdor of ogully Shares i ealiied 1o arw vole per Suwe. i
e vodt o 1geanion of e Congury, P holdars of sguly Dares wil Do enfiod 15 (00w Iemeeng asiol of Bw Compary, Ml Salibeton of o
[EE IR Y lhmnh-mhnma«.gmuﬂnlnw..
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JFinancial Liabities it ci——r —
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2028 March 3, 2024
[ Financial Liabkities o { TS
Trace Paysties | 4013 201
Trode Payabies 10 MSME (refer aote 31) | 28 86 20
Trade Puyaties 10 retaind paty (reter note 20) | 10a2 | e I,
{ 101.30 54.92
Teada Payatides Ageing as al March 39, 2025
: Less than® |Gmonths-1] .. eI T Jwoethans| .
o T
::lfuﬁan v 12 years 23 years _yosrs tfol %
MSENE 1ra . 174
Others 00 - e . ) A65.00
lsﬂl_ 4 7 =gt - 6341
Provsors _31;‘6 193 ol b= — 34 5%
Toral 10057 s 143 - ) 101.09
Trade Payables Ageing as at March 31, 2024
E Less Bun 6 | 6 months - 1 ARSR More than 3 oS
. T
s Warths _ Toemew f  Stwem | Geea | M
MEML 227 - - . ¥
onars e . i Yl
Toud 2008 : < 1. 2008
Provisors 3463 024 e ) SABY
Tots | 5458 0.24 . - 5492
Fon ' Lk
As m As ot
Pacticatars March )%, 2028 Narch 31, 2024
[ Fimancial Uabitms N s
0} Depesn froen Repostory Padopants 81588 | ,,@.f{.
815.848 860.73
(4} Othors
Cresinoes for Captal Expenciiure o R 2040
Cregaors for Capital Expendiure - MSME (refee note 31) 19 uAsi
Irtorent Payatio 1o NSML: om | 017 |
D=t ne M1
L] o 9%
é:n‘mm- e
Y i . .
| As ot As
Pacticolary o | March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
) Prowason for Geohaty I_ AT 2 51
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= i [FIXT 12184
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o O 2o
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Noticoul £-Repository Limbed - Financial Statemonts
(Al amounts i INR lakhs, unloss otherwise stated)

17 Rovenwe from operations

| For the yoar onded | For the yoar entdod
Do ‘ March31, 2025 | March3t, 2004
Sake of services !
Trarapcton chaeges for Chent Nogotisted Tiade KLES B 5398
Wrehouse (g 1899 7668
Pooge eos 329 2370
Exchangs Cormachwty Foes 3500 3500
TranssCson charges for Withdrawal Charges Man a9
Trarascion chasges for ooking 765 8
Tranaschon chapes for Medge 1142 1243
Tracaachon chisges for AMC - Coarng Member 450 485
Transacton chaeges foe AMC - Caorts 8.4 781
Assaving Silng 719 8%
oNWR holding changes Bé 31 7980
Transacton charges r copasil 2500 19383
Transacion charges for all wihdrawiss L () _ 6597
Total 965.42 855.19

Duting the Trancid year 202425 05 well 35 ancl per 2023 24, N9 Bngie Cusiomer! 3 Qroup of entises
UNder Comman contrel” contritatind 10% o moe 10 e Company’s sevenue

Reverue Roecognised

[ For the year ended | For the year ended |

Pasticulars ) March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

H:_bf_l;ﬂ_n_hnq_ 3 : '8 St

Over the peniod of tive AT0R| ar.15%

LCT - B wsar| e
18 Other Income e .

i For the year ended | Foe the yoar ended
A March 31, 2026 March 31, 2024
EXCRSS COOMI00 welian Lach

Excess provson weilon tack for bad & doutsiul debls 035
Foance ncome

Wieest on Bank degosts 1982 22140

terest on Refund of Income Tax 249 i

Short Term Gan - MF 400 0&2

Unrealsed Gaen MF 058 o0

Marketing Fees 2n -

AP Vawanco Recovory 510 550

Ower Income : o0 0.2
g -~ R N = 23845 | BiE

15 Employee benelits oxpenses N N
For the year ended | Foe the yoar onded
P whars
aﬂk- .~ March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Satanes, bonus and dlowances 84349 mar2
Deputaton cost 062 g
Conrdxaion 10 Provoent and othor funds 5765 4976
S1fY wrdfaen eoefwrses 5238 5345
== ot | 85412 — 580,92
20 Technology Exponsos - R
For the yoar ended
Kaspanspet: )  Starch 31, 2025
Dt Contre Chamges 9215
Softeare Exponses 164.35
Other Tochnology Experses 1582
- :
_tou) y NS (X))
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21 Deprociation & Amortization

3 AL For the yoar ended | For the yoar ended |
b Msrch 34, 2025 umhy:ta,'ga_ =
Daprecialion 1302 1021
Amorszation 20062 39100
B T Towi | e aonan
22 Other exponsos o
1 For the yoar onded | For the year onded
raouimm March 31, 2026 March 31, 2024
Space and Indrasiruciure charges 8252 76 .55
Rates and Taxes 978 580
Lagal and Professionsy’ Charges 62 04 44 33
Traveling and Corveyance Expenses 650z 4823
Advertisement and Publcity 7.90 549
Payment 10 Audtors 1157 1941
Reguimory Fees - WDRA 299 1001
Oirectons Silling Fees 17.25 1585
Sing Fees for Conmttee Member 285 220
Provision for doutitiul debes . D49
Omer Bxpenses 2376 31
Total | 20267 | 258.35
Note: s
Paymaont 1o Auditons
As Auditors :
ALt Fees 6.50 6.5
Tax Audil Fees 2.50 25
Limited Review 200 200
In Other Capacities
Taxation matiers - -
Certification matlers 015 015
Out of Pocke! Expenses il | 042 ) 026
Total bl i 11.57 11.41

70




NeRL Annual Report FY2024-25 o= i
< NeRL

REPOSITORY
COPOSSIBILITIES

National E-Repository Limited - Financlal Statements
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

23 In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard - 33 "Earning per Share”

Earning per share

" For the year ended For the year ended
i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit / (Loss) after tax [A] (398.21) (501.37)
Wesghted Avecage number of equity shares issued (in
numbers) (8] £1,000,000 81,000,000
Eamings per share of Rs. 10/ each (in Rs.)
;Bingsc (Rs) (D.49) - (0.62);
Diksted (Rs ) = = E (0.49) 0.62)

Tha Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equily shares. Consequently, the basic and
diuted eaming per share of the Company remain the same

There are no instruments (including contingently issuable shares) issued that could potentialy diute basic
earnings per share in the future
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGUMEINT (Mso Refer Note 36)

The Company’s Dusiness aciviies expote £ 10 a vanety of tnoncad neks, namely bquedity risk, market risks and crogdt rek. Tho Company’s server
MAnsgomOn hag the M respossdabty ke e o pntyment and oversgie of e Company’s rsk management Samework

The Compary his dovoloped a Rak Maragement Policy n accondance wih the peowaions of he Companes Act, 2013 I eefablishes virious
levels of accountabdty and Overview withe the Comparny, while vesting dentBied managers wid responsibdly for each signdcant rsh. Rsh
Managoemen! policy has boen formulated with an am (0 (a) Overseong the Company's fsk munagement process and conols, sak tolerance (b)
Setteg stralegic plans and ctyecives K 1isk management and seviow of rsk vt of the Company (<) Review the Company’s nsk appetae
ond stralogy rofalng 10 Koy O8hs iInChang CARR Ask, Mdty and fundg ek, Miarked Nk, product Ask and fopudabional sk as well as P
Quidalines, policies and procasses for sor 2 And Mgt such raks

The Troasury department acivites ave designed 1o

protect the Company’s foancil resulls and posiion Fom Snancal saks

» madatan maricet tisks Wit 200epIabIe DFBMSLes, wivie CptimESng relurrns, and

- B Company's fenncal vosinonts, while maxiemsing retums.

The Troasiry depariment o 1e3p0nsiio 10 maxenae the rohun tonally Qor d fndh

A, MANAGEMENY OF LIQUIITY RISK

Ligudty sk s the rsh Bat e Compary will fnce in mesting its Sigaons sesccaed with s francal Babilties. The Compery's sgeroech 10
Macapng aunily = 10 enaurn thal il will have sutfiGent fands 10 Mmoot ds kabities whon due without InCurng wacceptable losses. I dang the
MR COntdiers Soth nomal nd sirossed Conditons.

The Comgany's ensory depaiment reguindy mondons the solng Krocests 0 ensurd @ has scificent cash on an on-powg Basis % eeat

operabood! roeds Any Shod term surplus Cash g ol by thae op g over and sbove Ta amount egueed r working Capital
MY L and other Wl 1OQuEemants, I8 fetained & Cosh and cash ogunvionts (10 Ihe edan! reguaed) and ary axtass & irvosiod in
highly markelable deln Evesivants and fond doposts 10 optenuse (he Cash rohams 0n wesiments wid ensurng suticient hquidty 1o meet is
inhates
Partculars Carryng amount | Loss than 12 months More than 1 2months Total ]
Te i T |
As a1 31t March 2025 . R
Trade payables 101 80 101.80 70180 1
Deposd from Repostory Parscpants LY 815 80 - LAEY )
Otref Inancal atatos e atéz| LR PSRV 3182
Partculars : Carrying amoust | Loss than 12 months Nore than 12montts Total N
A a1 182 Macch 2024 EZ B 5 ' J
»[«ggm_._ = 5402 o w2 - 54 50
|Oepost om Roposacry Parkcpants BEO 23 BA0 7% - 80N
[Other fnancaal Babktas 35 11 E 11 H e e e %, |

B MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK
Crodd risk is the nek of financial loss 10 the Company 1 0 CUSIOMET OF CouNor-Panty 1ads 10 Moet its CONACuN CREQMONS

Concentrations of crodd rsk with <t 10 irade Dics are Wrelod, tow 10 the Company's Cuatomat beso beng lege and dverse

Teade recoivablos

AR o recoivalies N0 fOvwed A3 G55S803 10 GOt 0N & POOAS Dasis. Based on hestoncal MPEence of colocting rocevables. suppored
By he beved of ol our Sddassment of Coadit nak i low. Accoedngly, cur provision kor evpected credd 1oss on trade receivable s not material

Other nancial assets
The Company maEntaing wxposute in cash and cash equivalents. lesm deposes with banks and highly marketatie debit investments

C : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (AMo0 Reder Note 9 (v))
The compeny conmcers 1o ollowing components of ds Balance Sheet 10 be mansged capial
Toral oguaty (83 shawn in the bafance sheet)- retamed profe. shave capial

The Company menages &5 capdal 40 &3 10 saleguand I3 Mdly 10 CoNNUD 35 & GONG CONGAM and 10 Optme retums 10 owr shareholders. The
cagtal shructuen of the Company is based on management's judgement of e sppropnale batance of key slements 0 order 10 Mmoot its Sirategic ad
cay-to-gay roeds The Compony conmders he amount of capial In ErocpOrkon 10 nsk and Manage e coapdal struchure in Ight of changes n
ROCOOMIG CONdBOns and nek charactenstcs of the underyv) sasets.

In Sorms of cinase 12 (1) of the Guideines on Repostories and Creation and Maragement of Eleckonc Negotatie Warehouse Recopts cwed
October 20. 2016 ssved by Warehousing Devoiopment and Roguiatony Authorly, the Comparry is 1ogured 1o masian & et worth of not s than
Rupees twenty free crore, ot ol temes. AL presest the Company compies wih Sy gudeines




NeRL Annual Report FY2024-25

£ NeRL

REPOSITORY
CO POSSIBILITIES

v Lanendg -
LR ety 4RI MIPE cweas OANeTRiee Pheted

- The Campury Sven oot bave ary pomdig Upamess o4 @ M 1° 2000 Howe e Pt amr B rmege Mebilen wferwrer arve siie o 1 e s MEe et e e I

Mwummlm—d-mmummu<~q0-u—wimmﬂumv:-~m-ﬂ
St e Augen 1T 220N vt Ooxter B JREY mapeetiunty v s bn B NCTIEK Al tend § enater NOOENOUS ADLLANGE A NVDATIGATION [ PADED) deed Dearte 30
N‘o.-vww#wd-n‘nu-—uiomﬂ-ﬂw-Mtw-»-——-—-—m-nwmmmmn
o Dmiieas 043 Gunond S0y (8 10 0f 30 STe SApeTVint memendien v Chant A6 Rapwtatd A THhe GACEIMR Of 708e Tvvroniney aar ewesiad b @ g of ke yee
o N Doty 20, 2070 Bulaagunaily D Setpursh wie St aended A 4 Jroc of ave e e (6 ™I » - T eeeroes
B ety 31 3525 SuDeeasrty B haparaem e Frtee astended W Veeeh 31, 3000 e APt 1 L anerong P 8 peted of wre ey g (e 8 Viewh 31 3R NCDEX
" e Srevee MCORTILMVELLANGE § IVWERE T4 TON-L0 DS sennd Mach 15 2005 b St 0P Dir 16 B Sutgmeiin oF Ml LODTIRO0M. T Svetue O e Comomny
Nyt ) A Eet I A COTTUCEat Nt Cae roeeted T Catgety beahd o 64 RebbseTet A T e T WM AT et v e tevprg vena f e mamin The et
e main e et b T st ol pei a0 Ve 1Y 000

"t Coin on Baam Serurty DOUS (Cote ) memeg 13 emgiuee leretn Aoy segigeed 8ol Do POt Decetty et Newrerr e swwr = Lopmwes JOT T'e Jude tee
Porn DSt W P SRR of Wla arver. B e o0 wNch T Coce i Som e eSect e el eet aeiid Tt Chemiey W stees T g o T Code whee | somes e
VTN ek il wiad g ¥ aTy W RS perad B 0004 imemeet whecbve

¥ sstmen wih Do WEN FIvI0r o ™ COmomarem At 571 e Cwmpary M6l sl Fave vy ey B S LEas B o VA 1 TS sl Setuad ven cemd e Fu sl R
— Ery P frwaseette watas The Cimguey il ak Pt By Servaiten CARTRTE 4e @ Went 312N

- P hw pasr eved Maes 17 2000 u-r‘-.—y-—mnumr'm--mn---—!“otmm-o.-aamoo.—--'-n'-tm
AL a0
" A mpme
>N e T s

Lrem bon

Tom Loy e

N
FRETI LT *‘I(“.M
9! e vis Ceve ogm b Tlavro TR S—
¢ 7 N )
beowge .
Jir yor b T
bep " oude Ppysioe AT e Ao
e heees A2 —d RSO b srveese = b
e F '“1‘-“
G T T g
S ags FAWEE WA ¢ Ty 'vu\:\-u...-' |
! |

77




NeRL Annual Report FY2024-25

« "ot - LU}
| mlee o hmeey ey ey
B POAIIIn LOre B SR T W WY SOy Bl e ey b SRR MeaTs DAPAT) wrde’ Tee Basam T armartorn PeoASaee] A WEE 8 o 1R st By mmoe
P @ s
[ el
e e e L L e S S —
R N w0 WA F e
The Comury e 00 VLELGES wih fa e it oF saw Cavimets AR JT15 o Sompeees Ari 908
YL e A e ) o e -
CWReany Mt tamplad o B Wi f Srws reseilied e e Campenes 62 B913
PO EONA mP munied b wmen i g ey
The Coumaary At Nt aheret VIB 4hg Mieee A0 P WY V0 W msailiny Toped b et e cwat T ..
(m U baies o et bttt
W0 LA Nt Tt Bivarnd  ared IV PRI e b lewend Snts & IRy SRR Of W M anamms or Mnd oF et Sy e Sy W o B o e el W
SRS PRy STEGE AL (e ) W e RTINS, et et ey W T D Sty W et o Iew ¥ JuCy Tl by e -
et M PSS iary (Rrate B e W
& BTN W ACERITY BOC O Vet e e pereeren @ aetiies Martied 11 Sy Sadier wihatassrw By W o futed o iy S vy 1 Bt awn «
B irevide oty Qaanamnn MUty & T e W @ o il o e oenate MenetCiney
T Comgary tan s wemurd amy Lt B gny PENYTE ¥ ey Pety) w e CwERnOrg Pt Pe Devpmey thet wtamer  fewry o ey e v v gy v
Ehan Wmmlad Yy W AT o Te Chrgacy C\Memate Ban ot gran Pvile 4% prb e ten ety w Pe 8 W IR T P e Db an
S Attt et el el LT LS TN —
b Ty DTG ey @ T e e bl o
e eeed taree
TNES 1 e Ve bt @ Acemed S 000 LG e et WSS P R T U SRS it B vwwen T At VL N 0as Al e cameied & e Deng ¥
P
v Deals o oy ey o et d ey
THE CHtgary Nae bt @ VIO P TY0 Gy o Wl gy St e e 8 et e
W NV 0 PR AL (el see me e Te vy
The Comrmprmcy L T a0 B prgety s sl wp gt VN ot st TR et W DETY Batvy D Gt o e e
2 M dam 4 Nergen o T O W BagaE W W T amperer
T o «.w---u.-.w.uonnn:--ﬂ—-l.-u'.-u:-n—.r-ywm”.nw
« L i el Al T I i s T S B U ISP S ——

M gt ew rpnnt of Peen Be GTeched

Por aet e banad of P Baasd of Drmiiien

o
—
ot
Vemmervy e ' 20en
Fan Worne
S Viey M 2008
4% Lagm Cangtwes 3 Cre P raere Ut

£ NeRL

REPOSITORY
COPOSSIBILITIES

78




